
 

Finance Committee Page 1 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

May 10, 2022 

REPORT OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE  

 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Jake Wilson Chair Present  

Jefferson Thomas ("J.T.") Scott Vice Chair Present  

Beatriz GomezMouakad Ward Five City Councilor Present  

Judy PinedaNeufeld Ward Seven City Councilor Present  

Charlotte Kelly City Councilor At Large Present  

 

This meeting was held via GoToWebinar and was called to order by Chair Wilson at 6:00 pm 

and adjourned at 8:09 pm. Councilor Pineda Neufeld moved to adjourn, and the motion was 

passed by unanimous roll call vote. 

Others present:  

Aneesh Sahni - Mayor’s Office, Hannah Carrillo - Mayor’s Office, Ben Bloomenthal - DPW, 

Charles Breen - Fire Department, Ed Bean - Auditing, Nancy Bacci - Health and Human 

Services, Vanessa Boukili - OSPCD, Jesse Clingan, Alan Inacio - OSPCD, Jill Lathan - DPW, 

Austin Faison - Mayor’s Office, Erica Satin-Hernandez, Christopher Hosman - Health and 

Human Services, Stephanie Widzowski - Assistant Clerk of Committees. 

 

Approval of the March 30, 2022 Minutes 

RESULT: ACCEPTED 

 

Approval of the April 12, 2022 Minutes 

RESULT: ACCEPTED 

 

Grant Acceptances 

213583: Requesting acceptance of, and approval to expend, a $94,622.16 grant for FY 2023, 

with no new match required, from MA Department of Public Health to the Health and 

Human Services Department for Tobacco Control Prevention. 

Dir. Bacci explained that Health and Human Services has been a recipient of this grant for about 

20 years. The grant covers the salary for the Tobacco Control Director as well as stipends for 



 

Finance Committee Page 2 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

youth performing compliance checks in Cambridge, Chelsea, Everett, Revere, Somerville and 

Winthrop. Through an oversight, the FY 2023 budget for this program was not included in their 

2021 presentation to the Council, and that is why Health and Human Services is requesting funds 

now. 

Councilor Kelly referred to the attachments to this item and asked for a description of the 

tobacco retail surveillance and data collection process. Dir. Bacci explained that youth perform 

compliance checks in partnership with the Tobacco Control Director and a police officer. The 

youth would enter a retail store and attempt to buy tobacco. The director provides educational 

opportunities to the stores as well in these situations. Councilor Kelly asked if the educational 

component only happens after a violation or is proactive. Dir. Bacci said that the director works 

with all businesses to make sure everyone is aware of the regulations, and the department gained 

a working relationship with many of them a few years ago when the city removed menthol 

products. 

Councilor Kelly asked if other departments besides SPD collaborate with Health and Human 

Services and asked how youth interact with SPD officers. Dir. Bacci replied that this is a specific 

collaboration with SPD, and that the youth tend to meet the director and officer near the business 

location. Councilor Kelly explained her reasoning for the question, referring to an organization 

that highlights interactions between youth and SPD that may go undocumented. 

Chair Wilson asked how often the department finds noncompliance. Dir. Bacci said that the 

businesses want to be strong partners and understand that selling to underage people is harmful 

not just to their business, but to the community. She will provide multiple years of statistics to 

the committee to show long-term trends. 

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Wilson, Scott, GomezMouakad, PinedaNeufeld, Kelly 

 

Appropriations 

213628: Requesting approval to appropriate $162,896.02 from the Street Tree Stabilization 

Fund for the Spring/Fall 2022 seasons. 

Dr. Boukili explained that the city aims to plant 350 trees throughout Somerville every year, and 

this request will cover about 40% of that. Councilor Scott asked for the amount of the tree line in 

the budget. Dr. Boukili said she requested $350,000, and Dir. Inacio said that $150,000 made it 

into the final budget. Councilor Scott asked if most of the funds come through the Tree 

Preservation ordinance. Dr. Boukili said that and illegal tree removals make up the bulk of their 

income. 

Councilor Scott asked how the city pursues claims for illegal tree removal. Dr. Boukili answered 

that they can levy fines through the legal department. Another method that has been successful is 

appraising the tree’s value and requiring a replacement caliper per caliper. Councilor Scott asked 

if the city can withhold someone’s certificate of occupancy on a claim. Dr. Boukili said she was 

not familiar with the whole process, but generally the city cannot withhold based on damage to a 

tree that is unrelated. Councilor Scott said that adding that as a standard condition on permits 

could have merit. 



 

Finance Committee Page 3 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

Councilor Kelly asked how much has been collected to date this year on fines and illegal 

removals. Dir. Inacio answered that $139,650 has been collected so far. Councilor Gomez 

Mouakad asked if Eversource gets fined for illegal tree removals. Dr. Boukili said she did not 

think so, but they have offered to replant trees. Councilor Gomez Mouakad commented that the 

city is seeing the end-of-life for some trees and that climate change may exacerbate stressors for 

some species. 

Councilor Pineda Neufeld asked how much is in the Tree Street Stabilization Fund. Dir. Inacio 

said that there was a previous appropriation, and after that is spent there will be $43,000. 

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Wilson, Scott, GomezMouakad, PinedaNeufeld, Kelly 

 

213491: Requesting a transfer of $9,000 from the Health and Human Services Professional 

and Technical Services Account to the Inspectional Services Extermination Account for the 

SMART rodent control pilot program. 

RESULT: WITHDRAWN 

 

213495: Requesting approval to pay a prior year invoice totaling $32,214.61 using available 

funds in the Department of Public Works from various Admin, Buildings, and Sanitation 

accounts. 

Dir. Bloomenthal gave an update on DPW’s efforts. Since the start of this process, DPW has 

addressed a backlog of invoices with energy suppliers and hazardous waste vendors while 

identifying more unpaid invoices. DPW is also seeking approval for prior year invoices for GDI 

(formerly AMPM) and Roca, as well as a small reimbursement for a training session. 

Councilor Scott asked if school custodians have their own contract and negotiating unit, and 

asked if it is standard procedure that this is coming from DPW, not the school department. Dir. 

Bloomenthal said that custodians do have their own negotiating unit, but the GDI invoices are for 

outside work. Dir. Bean added that custodians are in DPW, not the school department. 

Councilor Kelly asked if the purpose of the sanitation invoices was related to the pandemic, to 

which Dir. Bloomenthal answered that many predate COVID. Councilor Kelly asked why 

outside contractors were brought in for this labor. Commissioner Lathan said that there are many 

more requests for cleaning than there are staff, and special events often require extensive 

cleaning beyond what permanent staff would do. Councilor Kelly stated that it is important to 

keep City positions wherever possible and that the Council can partner with DPW to advocate 

for those. She also asked about the transitional employment program. Commissioner Lathan 

explained that Roca hires women in difficult situations who are often the sole providers for their 

households. Roca partners with the city for tasks such as shoveling sidewalks, picking up debris, 

and working on the bike path. She said that DPW met with Roca this week to renew their 

contract and how to support the women they hire. 

Councilor Kelly asked if there had been discussion of pipelines from Roca into full-time DPW 

positions. Commissioner Lathan said there had not been a formal discussion, but there are often 

positions open and they would be open to having Roca staff apply. Multiple councilors expressed 

their support for a formal pipeline. 



 

Finance Committee Page 4 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

Councilor Kelly asked if Roca is following minimum wage standards, to which the answer was 

yes. Councilor Gomez Mouakad asked if Roca prioritizes Somerville residents in the workforce. 

Commissioner Lathan said that they do not track that information for privacy reasons. 

Councilor Gomez Mouakad asked how many custodians staff each school. Commissioner Lathan 

did not have those numbers, but said she would find that information this week. Councilor 

Gomez Mouakad asked when the department may expect to finish finding prior year invoices, 

and also said she would like to know the details of how this happened. Commissioner Lathan 

said that DPW has many invoices with overlapping departments, and the problem should begin 

to resolve while they improve communication. There are still issues reaching vendors that are not 

using up-to-date technology. Sometimes invoices are sent by mail to former staff. However, 

DPW is already hearing positive feedback from vendors, in large part due to increasing staffing. 

Commissioner Lathan said she did not see this as what went wrong, but rather a lack of a 

consistent process that allowed many things to slide. The department has since worked on 

accountability and integrity, and have a large, hardworking team to tackle the backlog of 

invoices. 

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Wilson, Scott, GomezMouakad, PinedaNeufeld, Kelly 

 

213627: Requesting the appropriation of $500,000 from the Unreserved Fund Balance 

Account ("Free Cash") to the Fire Department Overtime Account to cover a shortfall. 

Chief Breen said that COVID has been the primary driver for depletion of funds, as the Fire 

Department has seen a rise in sick leave over the pandemic. There are also vacancies that cause 

current staff to fill in with overtime. Chief Breen commended the Fire Department staff for 

filling various roles over the course of the pandemic. 

Councilor Kelly asked if COVID cases have been resulting in increased sick leave in 2022 

versus 2021, and if the injury leave also requested in this item is separate from COVID. The 

answer was yes to both. Councilor Kelly asked if there were any factors increasing rates of injury 

leave this year, to which Chief Breen replied that there has not been any irregular rise in injury 

leave; it is mostly sick leave that is being taken. 

Councilor Scott commented that the YTD report lists that overtime has a budget of $1.4 million 

this year and asked about the status of those funds. Dir. Bean said that some of the salary budget 

of unfilled positions has been transferred to overtime - about $780,000 - so their revised budget 

is $2,193,893, and they have spent $2,335,531. They are in deficit for overtime, but not overall. 

He added that they are trying to get FEMA to pay for some of their needs, but have been 

unsuccessful so far. 

Councilor Scott asked about the positions being onboarded and why there has been a delay. 

Chief Breen replied that there are eight new hires going through physical testing, and they should 

finish onboarding in June. Councilor Scott noted that civil service initiated the hiring process for 

these positions last fall. 

Chair Wilson noted for the public that overtime gives 1.5 times pay, so it is more expensive for 

the city to fill shifts with overtime than by hiring additional staff. He asked if there is any 

causation between the overtime and increased injury. Chief Breen said that they have not seen an 



 

Finance Committee Page 5 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

increase in injury leave, but described some precautions the department takes to prevent 

exhaustion: for example, the CBA mandates that staff are not allowed to work more than 48 

hours continuously. 

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Wilson, Scott, GomezMouakad, PinedaNeufeld, Kelly 

 

213636: City Solicitor requesting approval to retain Greenberg Traurig as outside legal 

counsel to represent the City in the matter of AMLEG, LLC v. City of Somerville. 

City Solicitor Wright explained that in November 2019, the city voted to acquire 217 Somerville 

Ave for open space and authorized a pro tanto payment of $1.3 million. The parcel is a vacant 

lot, and the owner has filed a lawsuit alleging that the amount paid by the city has been 

insufficient. James D. Masterman has successfully represented the city in the past and has 

expertise in this technical area. 

Chair Wilson asked if a specific person listed in the complaint, who was involved in an earlier 

case, is involved in this case or if it is a typo. Solicitor Wright said he did not think this person is 

involved, but the Bar in Somerville is small, and the same attorneys and appraisers are frequently 

seen on cases. 

Councilor Scott noted for the public that when a property is taken by eminent domain, unless 

there is an outstanding issue, it is a matter of doing appraisals and offering a pro tanto amount. 

Eminent domain is very common. He asked if the armory case has been settled yet, to which 

Solicitor Wright said that it is ongoing. Councilor Scott asked if the Solicitor predicted anything 

unusual with this case, but he said he did not think so. The owner had built on the property, but 

had taken the building down. 

RESULT: APPROVED. [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Wilson, Scott, GomezMouakad, PinedaNeufeld, Kelly 

 

ARPA Items 

213397: Requesting to appear before this Council with an American Rescue Plan Act 

(ARPA) progress update. 

Ms. Satin-Hernandez reviewed the report on FEMA and ARPA public health expenditures. The 

FEMA reimbursement ends June 30th of this year, and ARPA funding will continue through Dec 

31, 2024. However, the city has been billing to FEMA wherever possible to preserve ARPA 

funds - to date, about $3.2 million in public health expenses that could have been charged to 

ARPA has been funded by FEMA. FEMA is more strict on keeping to emergency purposes (e.g., 

rapid tests and essential services). The need for more broadly distributed rapid tests would fall 

under ARPA. 

Councilor Scott asked if there is an auditing report of which line items from the general fund 

would have covered expenses and how much has been reimbursed by FEMA. Dir. Bean said that 

they had reported regularly to the council in the past about this and that he would contact Dir. 

Hartke about compiling a report. Councilor Scott asked if the expenses are removed from the 

general fund once FEMA decides to cover them. Dir. Bean replied that PS items draw from the 



 

Finance Committee Page 6 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

general fund and then transfer to FEMA once the reimbursement is approved, but many items are 

non-PS; in those cases, the city works with consultants to determine what can be reimbursed. 

Councilor Scott noted that FEMA had paid for about $800,000 in overtime and asked which 

departments are getting covered by FEMA when the Fire Department cannot. Dir. Bean 

explained that some costs were covered earlier in the pandemic, but he did not have the specifics 

and would follow up. Councilor Scott requested a report on cost breakdowns for new staff, 

temporary staff and overtime. 

Councilor Kelly asked about the difference between temporary staff and contracted services. Ms. 

Satin-Hernandez said that temporary staff are more short-term and immediate to COVID, and 

contracted services are largely consultants doing specific tasks for the city. Councilor Kelly 

commented that the city knows better now what actions to take during COVID surges and 

expressed a hope that the need for contracted services will decrease as knowledge of the virus 

grows. She asked if Ms. Satin-Hernandez expected a heightened need for PPE during the fall and 

winter, and if that would go through ARPA given federal pandemic relief is winding down. Ms. 

Satin-Hernandez replied that a large priority is contact tracing - Health and Human Services will 

likely seek to expand that program. She said there is also still some time to use FEMA funds, and 

that they need to continue the planning process for what the department looks like in the future. 

Councilor Pineda Neufeld asked for the likelihood that FEMA would be extended. Ms. Satin-

Hernandez said she was told definitively that FEMA would not be extended this time, but Dir. 

Bean added that he believed FEMA reimbursement may continue at 90% of costs after June 30. 

Councilor Pineda Neufeld referred to the chart of ARPA-eligible FEMA expenses and asked if 

lab slots at the Broad Institute are still being offered. Ms. Satin-Hernandez said that she is unable 

to speak to that, but thought that some of the testing sites are still available, if not through the 

Broad Institute. Councilor Pineda Neufeld asked if COVID ambassadors will stay on through 

June and be funded by ARPA. Ms. Satin-Hernandez said that is a possibility, though she thought 

the original program closed earlier this year. Though the outreach workers may not have the 

official ambassador title, the department is still planning to fund them through ARPA. 

Councilor Pineda Neufeld asked if the Cab to Health program will be funded through 2024 or if 

that will be decided every fiscal year. Ms. Satin-Hernandez said that since they are still in the 

early stages of ARPA expenses, they plan to start with an annual cycle for the Cab to Health 

program. Then there will be larger discussions around not only the ARPA cycle, but longevity 

and evolving needs. Councilor Pineda Neufeld asked if there is a timeline for pending ARPA 

applications. Ms. Satin-Hernandez answered that they are primarily accepting internal 

applications now and working with a few partners to change or expand existing projects. Their 

goal is to get pending applications through the approval process in a few weeks. A potential 

strain on the timeline is reporting back to the federal level, and then there are procurement and 

finance logistics. 

Chair Wilson said that at the Mar 29 presentation for ARPA survey results, a constituent asked 

about the community center, and the answer was that a proposal had not been submitted for that 

yet. Chair Wilson asked how to submit a proposal, given that a community center was the most 

supported priority for councilors during the budget priority process. Dir. Faison acknowledged 

the extensive advocacy behind this item and said they are looking at options to fill community 

desires beyond just a community center; a teen center solution and flexible meeting spaces are 

also goals. He said that Dir. Proakis and Dir. Raiche have been hard at work on these items, and 

also that some “dominoes” will fall once decisions are made about the capital plan. Space is a 



 

Finance Committee Page 7 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

large concern for these projects. APRA funds can support moving towards a community center 

or in the acquisition of any site identified for the center, but Dir. Faison said that the community 

center at this stage is an idea, not a project. 

There were multiple discussions about the funding process and how community members can 

participate. Dir. Faison stressed that ideas need to be fully formed into projects or programs to 

receive APRA funding. The city is currently in the community feedback phase and meeting with 

local groups to get a sense of priorities, and those priorities will inform the applications that 

come in. The mayor and the advisory committee will get a chance to look at the community 

engagement in the process so far, draft a value statement, and then try to bucket funds within 

spending groups offered under ARPA. The internal application had been using OpenGov, but is 

converting to a platform that will also offer an external-facing portal for community members to 

submit applications - it will be launched soon. Dir. Faison said that there should be some 

parameters on the portal around what kinds of projects are applicable, and there also needs to be 

a feasibility test. 

Dir. Faison described some projects that have garnered community support. A community-

written application was submitted for a teen center, but the department felt that some items felt 

unfinished or that not all partner groups had been on board. He said that this is a priority for the 

mayor. Dir. Faison also discussed the idea of a community center with the Y, but he said there 

are not feasible places for the community’s needs right now. 

Multiple councilors asked about the proposal process. Dir. Faison said that groups can partner 

with department heads or internal organizations on applications. He said that the community 

application for a teen center had been typed in Word, and Ms. Satin-Hernandez copied some of 

that information into an application template so it could be reviewed. Councilor Scott asked if he 

should encourage people to ask Ms. Satin-Hernandez to assist in submitting applications. Dir. 

Faison said that could be done, and that www.somervillema.gov/arpa 

<http://www.somervillema.gov/arpa> has updated information and contacts, but Councilor Scott 

said that page is still a stub. Dir. Sahni asked if there is guidance that the city could provide 

interested groups while the portal is underway. Ms. Satin-Hernandez said she would be happy to 

meet with groups to go over guidelines and help them prepare. 

Councilor Gomez Mouakad noted that the city has state land with ample space for parking and 

suggested that as an option for the community center. She also thanked Ms. Satin-Hernandez for 

her participation in a meeting with the Latino immigrant community last week in which needs 

were made clear - including language access and daycare for low-income mothers. Councilor 

Gomez Mouakad reminded the committee that many women, low-income women and women of 

color lost their jobs during the pandemic. She said that the Latino community will not fill out this 

application, but they worked with Ms. Satin-Hernandez on their priorities. She asked if staff will 

work with people to submit applications or if those who are interested will need to organize. Dir. 

Faison said that those are past problems, and that this group does not need to apply directly for 

funding, but could advocate for programs that they think would help. He said the mayor has 

internally prioritized wage equity and childcare and is trying to identify programming that could 

impact those communities. Some services would be provided by city departments, but there are 

many items the city is not working on personally, but rather are partner efforts (for example, 

UBI). 



 

Finance Committee Page 8 of 8 Printed 5/18/2022 

Chair Wilson called on Dir. Hosman to give an update on the Childcare Access and Affordability 

Financial Assistance program. They have secured 31 of 35 targeted slots for toddlers and 

preschoolers across seven different centers. Total contract awards so far amount to $810,000, and 

the city has placed 15 families in slots so far. Councilor Scott asked if updated information about 

the facilities involved is online, to which Dir. Hosman replied no because the application is no 

longer online. There are 120 applicants now, but there may not be assistance available for all of 

them due to a teacher shortage. 

Ms. Satin-Hernandez said that in ARPA regulations, the groups that can be funded directly are 

municipalities, incorporated non-profits, or registered businesses. External groups need a UEI 

number, so the best way to move forward would be to partner with a group that qualifies for 

direct funding. Councilor Gomez Mouakad asked how the city is prioritizing the most pressing 

needs. Dir. Faison stated that more than one program can be chosen. Councilor Gomez Mouakad 

said that the community center could easily cost $25-50 million and that the city will need to 

make decisions. 

Ms. Satin-Hernandez said that the goal for next steps with community engagement is to identify 

themes, turn those into a part of the criteria for developing projects, announce those priorities so 

they are publicly available, and assess proposals that come out of those priorities. 

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED 

 

Finance & Budget Items 

213459: That the Director of Finance and the Budget Director update this Council on the 

funding status for the six patrol officer positions included in the FY 2022 budget pending 

the Police Staffing Study. 

Chair Wilson said he had met with Dir. Bean, Dir. Mastrobuoni, and Dir. Sahni and was assured 

that open gov is being updated to reflect Mayor Ballantyne’s cuts. He said they also discussed 

the process to make sure any conditional items going forward are handled properly. 

Councilor Scott said he did not see the updates on open gov, and asked when a budget update is 

coming. Dir. Sahni said that the update is under “Reductions in the Police Budget” on the 

website in the breakdown by department. Councilor Scott stated that it is not reflected in the line 

items. 

Councilor Scott asked for a financial update from the Administration, and Dir. Bean said that this 

would happen at the May 19 meeting with the mayor. Chair Wilson noted that there had been an 

earlier, more abstract discussion about this meeting prior to when it appeared on the City Council 

calendar. There was a discussion about offline conversations scheduling the May 19 meeting. 

Dir. Sahni indicated that he had spoken with President McLaughlin and Chair Wilson about the 

May 19 meeting, and expressed his intent to send out a communication to the council with 

details of that meeting. Councilor Gomez Mouakad requested early communication about the 

scheduling of June budget meetings. 

RESULT: WORK COMPLETED 

 


